S.R. BatLiBo1 & Co. LLP T ks Tosncoe

Sector - 42, Sector Road
hartered A t :
Ehartered Accountants Gurugram - 122 002, Haryana, India

Tel :+91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (“the
Company™). which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs).
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics™ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
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concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on April 21, 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company only w.e.f. April 1,2023, reporting under
this clause is not applicable:

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended:

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 44 (B) to the financial statements:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

[
AT -~ U‘i‘“ -
kﬁerA(}ay Bansal
Pattner

Membership Number: 502243
UDIN: 23502243BGTIUK2724
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: 24 April, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets as
reflected in the financial statements.

(b)  All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during
the year but there is a regular programme of verification which in our opinion is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

Certain title deeds of the immovable Properties. in the nature of freehold land & buildings, which
were acquired pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation approved by National Company Law
Tribunal’s (NCLT) Order dated November 15, 2022, are not individually held in the name of the
Company, however the deed of merger has been registered by the Company on November 28,
2022. This matter has been disclosed in note 3 (d) to the financial statements.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023

(¢) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for
such verification is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were not noticed in respect of such verification.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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(b) As disclosed in note 12 and note 53 (vii) to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and financial
institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly
statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with
the books of accounts of the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(€) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the

requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act, related to the manufacture of goods and generation of electricity and High Carbon Ferro
Chorme, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.
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(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, , cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax. duty of custom, cess and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The provisions relating to sales tax, value added tax, excise duty and service tax are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

Note- Pursuant to the approval of the order by the Hon’ble NCLT and as per the terms of the
resolution plan, claims were not admitted by the Resolution Professional.

(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.
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(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud/ material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

(xii) ~ The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii)  Transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable
to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar
as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi)  The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a).(b).(c) & (d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and immediately preceding financial
year.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 53 (iv) to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in
note 53 (iii) to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies
Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 53 (iii) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

2

7 / ’k,f ':M‘; J'l,
Per Kj%y Bansal
artner
Membership No: 502243
UDIN: 23502243BGTIUK2724

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 24, 2023
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our Report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ferro Alloys
Corporation Limited (*the Company™) as of March 31,2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAIL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B, 3rd Floor, Ko!kata-700 016
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICALI.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

2}
, vt o W
A . me{ A
_——
~
per Xjay Bansal
Partner

Membership Number: 502243
UDIN: 23502243BGTIUK2724
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 24, 2023



FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
(% In Crores)
Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment 3 73517 707.44
Capital work-in-progress 4 (a) 210.13 50.50
Assets held for sale 4 (b) 0.01 0.01
Intangible sssets 5 7.41 10.36
Other Mining sssets 5 10.32 -
Stripping sssets 4 (b) 28.11 2228
Investment in subsidiaries and associstes 6 0.05 0.09
Financial Assets
Investrents - others 7 0.34 0.37
Finarcial Assets - others 8 33.62 37.00
Other non-current assets 9 20.03 33.50
Deferred tax assets 23 71.54 -
Total Non- Current Assets 1.116.73 861.54
Current Assets
Inventories 10 113.86 83.98
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 28.05 2.69
Cash and cash equivalents 12 4.02 8.17
Other bank balances 13 18.00 83.36
Loans 14 0.19 -
Other financial assets 15 1.85 1.48
Current tax assets (Net) 16 41.96 0.41
Othar current assets 17 78.13 89.06
Total current assets 286.06 269.15
Total Assets 1,402.79 1,130.69
EQIUTY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 34.00 34.00
Othar ecuity 19 1,025.58 751.08
Total equity 1,059.58 785.08
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 22.03 72.53
i.ezse Liabilities 21 0.17 0.17
Provisions 22 7.97 4.65
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 23 - 13.53
Total non-current liabilities 30.17 90.89
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Sorrowings 24 72.16 55.82
Lease habilities 21 0.00 -
Operational buyers credit 25 12.68 -
Trade payables 26
Micro small and mecium enterpr:ses 11.73 2.80
Others 183.37 79.98
Cenvatives 27 0.13 -
Other financial ligbilities 28 23.33 8.57
Other current liabilities 29 8.28 26.65
Provisions 30 1.36 0.72
Current tax liabilities (Net) 31 £ 80.18
Total current liabilities 313.04 254.72
Total liabilities 343.21 34561
Total equity and liabilities 1,402.79 1,130.69
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
As per our report on even date ( ““\& For and on behalf of the Board of _irectors
| \ \ W~
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Sujalluy, hah Narayanaswamy
Chartered Accountanis Whole-Tjme Director & Chief Executive Officer Director

(ICA! Firm's Regn.No.301083E / 23002053 (DIN 09394796)

= A} a
27 A~
Karan Kumar Kejriwal €

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.11105)

Place : Gurugram Place : Bhadrak
Date : 24 April 2023 Date : 24 April 2023
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED £ vedanta CaeTie
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 R im——

(¥ in Crores)
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Note
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue
Revenue from operations 32 773.56 836.72
Operating income 33 4.78 12.25
Other income 34 17.73 4.34
Total income 796.07 853.30
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 35 267.14 261.40
Changes in inventories of finished goods and stock in progress 36 3.49 4.80
Employee benefits expense 37 45.95 41.76
Finance costs 38 11.76 15.53
Depreciation and amortization expense 39 43.61 25.21
Other expenses 40 312.80 217.07
Total expenses 684.75 565.77
Profit Before exceptional items and tax 111.32 287.53
Net exceptional losses 41 18.02 -
Profit before tax 93.30 287.53
Tax expenses 42
Current tax - 81.71
Tax for earlier years (113.50) -
Deferred tax (85.29) 3.28
Profit/(Loss) for the period (A) 292.09 202.54
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.83) (1.54)
Fair value of investment (0.03) 0.26
Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to Profit and loss 0.21 (0.51)
Total other comprehensive income for the period (B) (0.65) (1.79)
Total comprehensive Income for the period (A + B) 291.44 200.75
Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 1/- each 43

Basic 8.59 5.96

Diluted 8.59 5.96

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

As per our report on even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

~ f'w'“’“h/
e ardyanaswamy

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Director

Chartered Accountants

(ICAl Firm's Regn.No.aojaosE / E300005) & Chief Executive Officer (DIN 00818169)
7 \
= Lt (DIN 09394796) [\
= o - % Y (S b
N W i
per /A;ay/ Bans s 2 % Karan Kumar Kejriwal Samb Sarangi
artner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.11105)

Place : Gurugram Place : Bhadrak
Date : 24 Aprit 2023 Date : 24 April 2023
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED e S
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 y ve‘d‘w"
(¥ In Crores)
Sl. No. Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit after prior period items and before tax 93.29 287.53
Adjustments For:
Interest income 4.31 3.62
Depreciation 43,61 25.21
Interest expense 11.76 15.53
Operating cash profit before working capital changes 152.97 331.90
Movement in Working Capital:-
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 112.32 60.41
(Decrease)/ Increase in Other Current Liabilities (18.37) 1.34
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities 27.58 (72.96)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non Current Liabilities 3.38 (27.56)
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 4.68 2.08
Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Non Current Assets 13.46 (33.36)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets 64.49 (82.82)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (29.88) (26.22)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (25.37) (0.56)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Current Assets 10.94 (46.07)
Cash generated from operations 316.20 106.17
Less: Income tax paid (net of refunds) 8.25 29.96
Net cash generated from operating activities before
extraordinary item 307.95 76.21
Outflow for extraordinary item - “
Net cash generated from operating activities(A) 307.95 76.21
B  Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress (261.75) (93.66)
Net proceeds of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress (0.36) (2.18)
Interest received (4.00) (2.99)
Net movement in investments (0.08) 0.26
Net Cash Generated frorm/ (Used in) Investing Activities (B) (266.19) (98.57)
C  Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Net proceeds/(Repaymen) of Long Term Borrowings (34.16) (7.06)
Interest Expense Paid (11.78) (15.58)
Issue of Shares (0.00) =
Net Cash generated fronv (used in) Financing Activities (C) (45.92) (22.59)
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C) (4.15) (44.95)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.17 53.12
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4.02 8.17
Note:-

The above cash flow has been prepared under "Indirect method”
Flows.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
As per our report on even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm's Regn.No.3

Place : Gurugram
Date : 24 April 2023

jalkumar Jitendra Shah

Whole-Time\Director &
Chief Executive Officer

(DIN pa304796)
@G@,‘M voef

Karan Kumar Kejriwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Bhadrak

LY

Date : 24 April 2023
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 o (ERETER
{a) Equity share capital
FY 2022-23 (2 In Crores)
Equ:tr;, g;:al:e Restated balance | Changes in equity
Balance at the beginning of the year Capital due to at the beginning s.hare capital Balance at the
prior period of the current during the current | end of the year
SrioTe reporting period year
34.00 - - 0.00 34.00
FY 2021-22 (% In Crores)
Ecqt::t'; g;:ai?e Restated balance | Changes in equity
Balance at the peginning of the year Capital due to at the beginning s.hare capital Balance at the
rior period of the current | during the current| end of the year
B errors reporting period year
34.00 - - - 34.00
{b) Other equity (€ In Crores)
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurem
’ 5 Equity Portion  Fair value of ent of defined
Capital Reserve General Reserve Retained earnings of Borrowings  Investment benefit Total
obligations
Balance at 1 April 2021 931.31 192.00 (781.99) 277 0.06 {0.67) 343.48
Facor Power Limited - (892.21) - - - (892.21)
Total 931.31 192.00 (1.674.20) 277 0.06 10.67) (548.73)
Effect of Merger (Refer Note 50) 230.06 - 869.00 - - - 1,099.06
Balance at 1 April 2024 1,161.37 192.00 (805.20) 277 0.06 (0.67) 550.33
Profit for the year 2021.22 - - 202.54 - - - 202.54
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - - - - - (1.79) (1.79}
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - 202.54 - - (1.79) 200.75
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,161.37 192.00 (602.66) 277 0.06 (2.46) 751.08
Profit for the year 2022-23 - - 292.08 - - - 292.08
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - - - (0.65) {0.65)
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - 292.08 - - (0.65) 291.43
Consideration paid for purchasing additional 10% stake - - (16.92) - - - (16.92)
in subsidiary
Bajance at 31 Mar 2023 1,161.37 192.00 (327.51) 2,77 0.06 {3.11) 1,025,58

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
As per our repert on even date . Eer and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ar-Jitendra Shah

4796)
@Gﬂ‘v\mﬂ

For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP
Chartered Acceuntants A
(ICALEirm's Regn,Nov301gﬂ3E /E300q0/5_)

Z e

. -~ o o
Karan Kumar Kejriwal Sambit Kumar Sarangi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(ICSI Membership No.11105)

Place : Bhadrak
Date : 24 April 2023

Place : Gurugram
Date : 24 April 2023
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FERRO ALLQOYS CORPCORATICN LIMITED.

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

1 Company overview

Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited referred to as “FACOR”® or “the Company” is domiciled in India. The Company’s registered office is at DP
Nagar, Randia, Dist. Bhadrak, Odisha — 756135.

FA(_:OR which .is one of the India’s largest producers and exporters of Ferro Alloys, an essential ingredient for manufacture of Steel and
Stainless Steel is also engaged in Chrome Ore exploration, mining, and beneficiation in the state of Odisha.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 April 2023.

2.A Significant accounting policies

This .note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.A.1 Basls of preparation

()] The'ﬂnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule lll), as applicable to the financial statement

The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency, and all values are rounded to the
nearest crores (INR 00, 00,000) except when otherwise indicated.

(i) Certain comparative figures appearing in these financial statements have been regrouped and/or reclassified to better reflect the
nature of those iterns.

2.A.2 Basis of measurement
() The Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:
* Property, plant and equipment at fair value.
¢ Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) measured at fair value
* Defined benefit liability/ assets: fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligation
(iiy The Company has prepared ihe financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concemn.

2B Summary of significant accounting policies

A. Revenue recognition

a) Sale of goods- The Company’s revenue from contracts with customers is mainly from the sale of ferro alloy. Revenue from contracts
with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised net of
discounts, volume rebates, outgoing sales taxes/goods and service tax and other indirect taxes. Revenues from sale of by products are
included in revenue

b) Interest income is recognized using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset The EIR is computed basis the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument. The calculation includes all fees, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts paid or received between
parties fo the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

¢) Export Incentives are recognised as per schemes specified in foreign Trade Policy, as amended from time to time on accrual basis
when right to receive is established and are accounted to the extent there is no uncertainty about its ultimate collection.

‘ d) Dividend income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, provided it is

probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

B Property, plant, and equiprment:

a) Mining properties and leases {
When a decision is taken that a mining property is viable for commercial production (i.e., when the Company determines that the

mining property will provide sufficient and sustainable return relating to the risks and the Company decided to proceed with the mine
development), all further pre-production primary development expenditure other than that on land, buildings, plant, equipment and
capital work in progress is capitalized as property, plant and equipment under the heading “Mining properties and leases” together with
any amount transferred from “Exploration and evaluation” assets. The costs of mining properties and leases, include the costs of
acquiring and developing mining properties and mineral rights.

The stripping cost incurred during the production phase of a surface mine is deferred to the extent the current period str{pping cost
exceeds the average period stripping cost over the life of mine and recognised as an asset if such cost provides a benefit in terms of
improved access to ore in future periods and certain criteria are met. When the benefit from the stripping costs are rgall.sed m_tl_we
current period, the stripping costs are accounted for as the cost of inventory. If the costs of inventory produced and the stripping activity
asset are nct separately identifiable, a relevant production measure is used to allocate the production stripping costs. between the
inventory produced and the stripping activity asset. The Company uses the expected volume of waste compared w!th .the aqtqal
volume of waste extracted for a given value of ore/mineral production for the purpose of determining the cost of the stripping activity

asset.

Deferred stripping costs are included in mining properties within property, plant and equipmen.t and disclosed as a part of mining
properties. After initial recognition, the stripping activity asset is depreciated on a unit of production method over th ected useful

Sensitivity: Internal (C3)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
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b)

c)

d)

In circumstances where a mining property is abandoned, the cumulative capitalised costs relating to the property are written off in the
period in which it occurs i.e. when the Company determines that the mining property will not provide sufficient and sustainable returns
relating to the risks and the Company decides not to proceed with the mine development

Commercial reserves are proved and probable reserves as defined by the 'JORC' Code, 'MORC' code or 'SAMREC' Code. Changes in
the commercial reserves affecting unit of production calculations are dealt with prospectively over the revised remaining reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

ltems of other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss if any.
The cost of assets comprises of purchase price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition and location for its intended use including borrowing cost and incidental
expenditure during construction incurred up to the date when the assets are ready to use. It also includes the initial estimate of the
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

For transition to Ind AS, the company had elected to continue with fair value of all the property, plant and equipment recognised as on 1
April 2016 (transition date).

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
the company and its cost can be measured reliably.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, then they are accounted for as separate item
(major components) of property, plant, and equipment. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalised if the recognition
criteria are met. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment computed as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. Major
inspection and overhaul expenditure is capitalized, if the recognition criteria are met.

Assets under construction

Capital work in progress includes cost of assets at sites, construction expenditure and interest on the funds deployed. At the point
when an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant, and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning
costs are capitalised until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense
Mining properties and other assets in the course of development or construction and freehold land are not depreciated or amortised.

The capitalised mining properties are amortised on a unit-of-production basis over the total estimated remaining commercial proved
and probable reserves of each property or group of properties and are subject to impairment review.

Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is provided on the basis of ‘straight line method over the useful life of assets after
determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life as evaluated by external
valuers and further reviewed by the technical Management based on historical experience.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Estimated useful lives (in years) of assets are as follows:
Assets Useful life (in years)
Buildings 30 to 60 years
Plant and equipment 10 to 40 years
Office equipment 5 1o 10 years
Railway Sidings 510 15 years
Furniture and fixture 8 to 10 years
Vehicles 6 to 10 years

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on a straight line basis. Software is amortised over the estimated useful
life ranging from 2-5 years. Amounts paid for securing mining rights are amortised over the period of the mining lease ranging from 5-
17 years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the
asset is different from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
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a)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale and are
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Such assets and disposal groups are presented separately
on the face of the balance sheet.

Irnpairment of non-financial assets

!mpa?rment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units. A cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of
assets.

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. The Company conducts
an internal review of asset values annually, which is used as a source of information to assess for any indications of impairment or
reversal of previously recognised impairment losses. Internal and external factors, such as worse economic performance than
expected, changes in expected future prices, costs and other market factors are also monitored to assess for indications of impairment
or reversal of previously recognised impairment losses.

If any such indication exists then an impairment review is undertaken and the recoverable amount is calculated, as the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form and its eventual disposal.
The cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in
use is determined by applying assumptions specific to the Company's continued use and cannot take into account future development.
These assumptions are different to those used in calculating fair value and consequently the value in use calculation is likely to give a
different resuit to a fair value calculation.

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length,
for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.

The carrying amount of the CGU is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the CGU is determined.

It the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited
so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised
in the stailement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a

revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign exchange forward contracts, cross currency
interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps and currency options, and embedded derivatives in the host contract.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value t_hrough compfehensive
income or fair value through profit and loss account depending on the company’s business model for managing the financial assets

and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessrnent
The company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level be
reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management.

e this best
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

i)

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

For the purposas of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideraiion for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular pericd of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing_ whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the company considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost only if both of the following conditions are met:
- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculgted by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.Fair value
movements are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and
foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.Interest earned
whilst holding fair value through other comprehensive income debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as

‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.
For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sal_e of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. For equity instruments which are classified
as FVTPL all subsequent fair value changes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from The asset have expired, or o :
- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without raterial delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) .the company has transferred
substantislly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Sensitivity: internal (C3)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the
transferred assst to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Cn fjerecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
port.lpn of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.

iif) Impairment

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost, e.g., loans, debt securities and deposits;

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVOCI;

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115.

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables, contract assets and
lease receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used fo provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12- month ECL.

Lifetirne ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 2-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit
and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets. The Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further
reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the ba§is of s.hanted credit
risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be

icentified on a timely basis.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the ba§is of s‘halted credit
risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be

identified on a timely hasis.

b) Financial liabilities

i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through prgﬁt or loss or as loans, borrowings
and payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial lizbilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial
guarentee sontracts and derivative financial instruments.

i) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost. ) )
Afler initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the El
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the group
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obiigation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity inctruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non- derivative host contract — with the
effect that scme of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded
derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or
other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate
embeddec derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks

are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though
profit or loss. These ernbedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
and loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets : }
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantially

different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are
deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised, and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a
medification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment
losses. in other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial iiabilities ] i )
The company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially

different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair va]ue. The .difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the_re is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultanecusly.
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Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate, and commodity price risks, the Company enters into forward, option,
swap contracts and other derivative financial instruments. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit and loss, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to the statement of profit and loss when the
hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition
of a nor-financial asset or non-financial liability

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a fiability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measura fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

A]I assets and !igbilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

J Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception, all arrangements to determine whether they are, or contain, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains lease, the Company separates payments and other consideration
required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the
Company concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are
recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset; subsequently the liability is reduced as payments are made and
an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

a) Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities towards future lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date when the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets as described in 'B' above.

(ii} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (and, in some instances, in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is generally not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabiiities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(ili) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b) Company as a lessor ) L
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as

operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevgnt Igase unless
the payments are structured {o increase in line with the general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increase. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the Iz.aased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned.

Leases ara classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership is transferred fror_n the Compgny to
the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net mvestment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment

outstanding in respect of the lease.

K Inventories )
Raw material, stores and spares and work in progress are valued at cost. Raw materials including stores and spares are valued on a

weighted average basis. Finished products are valued at cost or Net Realisable value whichever is lower, cost is raw material cost plus
costs of conversion, comprising labour costs and an attributable proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal
activity and are moved out of inventory on a weighted average basis.
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Scraps are valued at net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs
expected to be incurred for completion and disposal.

Foreign currency transactions

The fungtional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. For
all principal businesses of the Company, the functional currency is Indian rupee (%). The financial statements are presented in Indian
rupee (¥).

(a) In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.

(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year end, are translated into functional
currency at exchange rates applicable on reporting date.

(¢) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were determined.

(d) All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except those where the monetary item designated as an
effective hadging instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other
cornprehensive income.

(&) The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
CCl or profit or loss are also recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

Exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings, are capitalized as part of
borrowing costs in qualifying assets. The statement of profit and loss of oil and gas business is translated into Indian Rupees (INR) at
the average rates of exchange during the year / exchange rates as on the date of the transaction. The Balance Sheet is translated at
the exchange rate as at the reporting date. Exchange difference arising on translation is recognised in other comprehensive income
and would be recycled to the statement of profit and loss as and when these operations are disposed off.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans
Cbligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. The company has following

defined centribution plans:

a) Provident Fund
b) Superannuation Fund

Defined benefit plans

The company has only one Defined benefit plan - Gratuity. The company net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount, and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calcuiation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculaticn resulis in a potential asset for the company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
availzble in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan as;ets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income and
are not recycled to the statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the
gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculaited by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset at the beginning of the year. peﬁned
benefit costs are split into current service cost, past service cost, net interest expense or income and_ re_measurement and gains and
losses on curtailments and settliements. Current service cost and past service cost are recognised within employee benefit expense.

Net interest expense or income is recognized within finance costs.
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Other long-term employee benefits

The Company's ne§ ob_ligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The company has following long term employment benefit plans:
a) Leave encashment.

Leave encashment is payable to eligible employees at the time of retirement. accumulated leave expected to be carried forward

beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are

provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are

immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the

galance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
ate.

Borrowing Cost

Generg! and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Income tex
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income

Current tax
Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a) Has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and on carry forward of unused tax credits and unused

tax losses.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss.

Deferred tax assets (including MAT credit entitlement) are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, carry forward of unused tax credits and all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred ’(ax asset_s are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets znd liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the a;set is realised, or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (gither in ot_her co.mpret?ensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax reflacts the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the compa
the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

a) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be setiled or recovered.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws; to the extent it would be available for
set off against future current income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the
asset can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets
The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS.

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
itern included in the same class of obligations may be small.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriaie, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Balance Sheet.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits with original maturities of three
months or less that is readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Equity investment in subsidiaries and associates

Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost. A subsidiary is an entity that
is controlled by the Company. Control is evidenced where the Company has the power over the investee or exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity
returns. An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

Buyer's credit/ Vendor financing 3
The Company enters into arrangements whereby banks and financial institutions make direct payments to suppliers for raw matengls
and project materials. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date proyndmg worklng
capital timing benefits. These are normally settled between twelve months (for raw materials) to thirty-six months (for project matenals).
Where these arrangements are with a maturity of up to twelve months, the economic substance of the transaction is determined to be
operating in nature and these are recognised as operational buyers’ credit/ suppliers' credit and disclosed on the fgce of the balance
sheet. Where these arrangements are with a maturity beyond twelve months and up to thirty six months, the economic substance of the
transaction is determined to be financing in nature, and these are presented within borrowings in the balance sheet.

Interest expense on these are recognised in the finance cost. Payments made by banks and ﬁnancial_instiutions to the gperating
vendors are treated as a non cash item and settlement of due to operational buyer’s credit/ suppliers’ credit by the Company is treated
as an operating cash outflow reflecting the subtsance of the payment.

Exceptional items

Exceptional iterns are those items that management considers, by virtue of their size or incidence (including but not limited .to
impairment charges and acquisition and restructuring related costs), should be disclosed separately tc.>. ensure that_ the ﬁ_nanqal
information allows an understanding of the underlying performance of the business in the year, so as to facilitate comparison yvﬂh prior
pariods. Also, tax charges related to exceptional items and certain one-time tax effects are cop&dered exceptional. Such items are
material by nature or amount to the year's result and require separate disclosure in accordance with Ind AS.
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U Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share ("EPS") data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the pariod. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

V  Current and non-cuirent classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based in current / non-current classification.

An asset {s cI.assiﬁed as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or
consurnption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle. Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

« it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company'’s normal operating cycle.

« it is held orirzrily for the purpose of being traded;

» it is expected io be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

» itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporiing date.

Ali other assets are ciassified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

« it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

* It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

s It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

s the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, results in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect
its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

The cperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

W Events occurring after the balance sheet date.
All material events occurring after the balance sheet date up to the date of consideration of financial statements by the Board of
Directors April 21, 2022, have been considered, disclosed and adjusted, wherever applicable, as per the requirements of Ind AS 10 —
Events aftzr the Reporting Period.

2.C Application of new and amended standards

2.C.A The Company has adopted, with effect from 01 April 2022, the following new and revised standards and interpretations. Their adoption
has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in the financial statements.
1. Amendment o INDAS 37 regarding costs that an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-
making.
2. Amendment to INDAS 109 Financial Instrument regarding inclusion of fees in the 10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial
liabilities
3. Amendment to INDAS 103 Business Combination, Reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.

2.C.B Standards notified but not yet effective ' ]
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022, effective from 01 April

2023. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company. The Company has not early adopted any
amendments that has been notified but is not yet effective.

2.D Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to mgke. jgdge.ments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses for the years preserted. These judgments and estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the. relevant. facts
and circumstances, having regard to previous experience, but actual results may differ materially from the amounts included in the

financial statements.

Sensitivity. Intarnal (C3)



FERRO ALLQYS CORPORATION LIMITED.

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

A Significant estimates
- Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, including the recoverability of development costs.
- Useful life of properiy, plant & equipment
- Recoverability of deferred tax

B  Significant judgement

i) Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. A
provisicn is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that the Company will
be required to settle that obligation. Where it is management's assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is
uncertain, the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.
When considering the classification of legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote, there is judgement involved. This pertains to
the application of the legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management’s interpretation of country specific applicable law,
in particular india, and the likelihood of settlement. Management uses in-house and external legal professionals to make informed
decision.
Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have
a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or profitability.
Information about the judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements have been given below:
-Leases: Whether an arrangement contains a lease
-Classification of leases into finance and operating lease
- Classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the
contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2E Business Combinaticn

Amalgamation ¢f Facor Power Limited into Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited

The Board of Directors of the Company at it's meeting held on 19 April 2021 had approved he scheme of amalgamation of Facor
Power Limited (transferror Company) into Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (Transferee company) (Scheme of amalgamation). During
the current year, Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Cuttack Bench vide its Order dated 15 November 2022 approved the
Scheme of Amalgamation of Facor Power Limited (“FPL") into Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (“FACOR?).

Refer Note 50 on Business combination.
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
{%In Crores)

ROUAssets- | o1 opg Railways | Plantand Office | Furniture and
i il iidi . itw urniture an y
15 Land Buildings Feads & Drains Siding Equipment (a)| Equipments Fixtures Vehicles Total

At Cost

As 2t 01 April 2021 3.83 99.63 119.77 8.66 26,96 529.25 5.34 1.49 3.74 798.66
Additions - 10.30 3.06 = - 103.19 1.83 1.18 0.45 120.02
Disposals/ adjustments - - 123 - P 0.45 1.36 0.61 057 421
As at 31 March 2022 3.83 109.93 121.61 8.66 26.96 631.99 5.82 2.06 3.62 914.47
Additions - 3.58 3.23 - - 62.45 1.46 0.22 048 71.42
Disposals/ adjustments s - - - - 2.96 0.56 0.17 2.01 5.70
As at 31 March 2023 2.83 113.51 124.84 8.66 26.96 691.48 6.72 211 2.09 980.19
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment

As at 01 April 2021 0.31 - 31.13 4.97 12.70 131.53 2,62 0.83 2.77 186.86
Depreciation charge for the year 0.05 - 3.87 0.65 1.64 14.35 0.91 0.21 0.20 21.88
Disposals/ adjustments - - 0.12 - - 0.40 0.50 0.22 0.46 1.7
;As at 31 March 2022 0.3 - 34.88 5.62 14.35 145.47 3.03 0.82 2.51 207.03
{Depreciatior. charge for the year 0.05 - 3.82 0.65 1.64 18.74 0.74 0.16 0.17 25.97
Impairment charge for the year - - 15.63 .12 - 0.54 - - - 16.29
{Disposals/ adjustments - - = - 5 2.30 0.28 0.04 1.65 4.27
As at 31 March 2023 9.41 - 54.33 6.39 15.99 162.45 3.49 0.94 1.03 245.02
Net Book Value

As 2t 31 March 2023 3.42 113.51 70.51 2.27 10.97 529.03 3.23 1.17 1.06 735.17
As at 31 March 2022 3.47 109.93 86.73 3.04 12.61 486.52 279 1.24 1.1 707.44
Notes:

a) Plant and equipment include smelters, power plants and related facilities.

b) Movable Propetty, Motor Vehicles and Trade Mark are pledged as collateral against Non-Convertible Debentures, the details related to which have been described in Note 24 on “Borrowings”.

¢) The Company performed its annual impairment test for years ended 31 March 2023 and identified triggers for impairment analysis in Kathpal mines as the said block has been non-operational. The
Company is unable to establish future economic benefits/ cash flows from this asset, Therefore, the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment of Z 16.29 crores and mining rights of  1.73
crores for tha said mine has bzen fully impaired during the year in accordance with ind AS-36.

)} Title deecs of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company:-

Certain title deeds of the immovable Properties, in the nature of freehold land & buildings, as indicated in the below mentioned cases which were acquired pursuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation
approved by National Compaity Law Tribunal’'s (NCLT) Order dated 15 November 2022, are not individually held in the name of the Company, however the deed of merger has been registered by the
Company on 28 Navember 2022,

(2In Crores)
Whether title
deed holderis a
Description CST::!?:Q Title deeds P;?:‘;t::’ Property held Reason for not being
Eelavankibe “:m ;" iheBalanice of item of Valueas at | heldin the or :2:2‘:;? since which held in the name of the
B property 31 Marcn name of : date Company
irector or
2023
H employee of
| promoter/
1 director
} FACOR Power| Held in the name of erstwhile|
| i = q Limited  (Now| transferor company (FPL) which
Property, Plant and Equipment | Freehold land 6.96 merged  wilh No 27-Aug-07 |, oc amalgamated with the Company|
FACOR) through approved Scheme.
FACOR Power Held in the name of erstwhile|
. Leasehold Limited  (Now| transferor company (FPL) which|
Fropsity, Plantand Equipment fand 0.0 merged (with Ho 16-Dec-11 | ag amalgamated with the Company)|
FACOR) through approved Scheme.
FACOR Power Held in the name of N
Leasehold Limited (Now transferor company (FPL) which
PropeRlantiand Equ pmbnt land o merged (with ho 17-Nov-11 - Hyag amalgamated with the Company,
FACOR) through approved Scheme.
i k in prograss
4 (a) Capital work in prog i
i As at 31 As at 31
Parirulars March 2023 _|March 2022
Carrying amount of Capital work in progress 21013 50.50
{€1n Crores)
Particulars CWIP. Total
At Cost
As 2t 01 April 2021 103.56 103.56
Additions 69.45 69.45
Capitalisation during the year 122.51 122.51
As at 31 March 2022 50.50 50.50
Additions 231 231.05
Capitalisation during the year 714 71.42
As at 31 March 2023 210.1 210.13
i i ;| ' (¥ In Crores)
Capital work in progress(CWIP) Ageing Schedul
. : As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
o . Projects z § Projects
cwip Projects in | o porarily Total Projects in | 4o porarily Total
piogress suspended progres? suspended
Less than 1 year 159.62 - 159.62 4158 - 41.58
- 50 - - &
1-2 years 50.50 50.!
2-3 years = = - 8.92 : 8;92
More than 3 years - - - =
Total 21042 - 210.12 50.50 - 50.50
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LiMITED )
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 % Vedgqfd et Sy
4 (b) STRIPPING ASSETS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - T

(€In Crores)
k. | Assets Held | Stripping
Particulars for Sale Assats Total

At Cost
As at 01 Aprit 2021 .01 - 0.01
Additions | - 25.00 25.00
Disposals t - - -
As at 31 March 2022 1 0.01 25.00 25.01
Additions - 21.53 21.53
Disposals 0.00 0.00
As at 31 March 2023 0.01 46.53 46.54
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2021
Charge for the vear = .72 .72
As at 31 March 2022 - .72 .72
{Charge for the vear - 15.69 15.69
As at 31 March 2023 - 18.41 18.41
{Net Book Value ;
As at 31 March 2023 [ o.M 2812 28.13
As at 31 March 2022 T 0.01 22.28 22.29

Change in accounting estimates

The Company was following the practice of creating stripping assets and amortising the same on the basis of UNFC method until the period ended 31 March 2022. In order to align with the Parent

Company's adhered method of amortisation of stripping assets, the Company has now adopted JORC method in place of UNFC method during the current year. JORC method reserve estimation

process is on the conservativa side in comparison to the UNFC method and further it also takes into factor additional considerations such as statutory, legal compliance etc. As a result, the level of
fid in JORC ificati

Due to change of such accounting estimates, there has been an increamental amortisation of Stripping asset by ¥ 9.86 Crs.

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(%In Crores)

1
i oo . Other Mining SAP
Particulars Mining Right Ascate Implimention Total

At Cost

As at 01 April_2021 14.34 - - 14.54
Additicns - - 1.65 1.65
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 14.54 - 1.65 16.19
Additicns - 10.81 0.24 11.05
Disposals - - -
As at 31 March 2023 14.54 10.81 1.89 27.24
Accumulated depreciation and

{impairment

As at 01 April_2021 4.72 - - .7
Depreciation charge for the vear 0.80 0.21

As at 31 March 2022 5.52 - 0.21
}D_eqreciation charge for the vear 0.90 049 0.56 .
Impairment charge for the vear* 173 - 7
As at 31 Harch 2023 8.2% 0.49 0.77 .51
Net Book Valua

|As at 31 March 2023 €.29 10.32 112 17.73
{As at 41 March 2022 j 3.92 - 1.44 10.36

3
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED T e ¢
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 Marc é&%%ﬁ?«

(% In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

6 Investment in Subsidiary and Associates

1,00,000 (Previous Year 1,00,000) Facor Realty & Infrastructure Ltd. of ¥ 10/- each - 0.10
Less: Provision for Impairment - (0.06)
- 0.04

FACOR Reality and Infrastructure Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (FACOR), has now been
struck off w.e.f. 13 January 2023.Hence, the loss in value of investment has been recognised in Exceptional Items in statement of
profit & loss.

In Equity Shares of Associate Company -Unquoted - fully paid up
4,66,164 (Previous Year: 4,66,164) Boula Platinum Mining Pvt. Ltd. of ¥ 1/- each 0.05 0.05

0.05 0.09

Aggregate book value of quoted investments - =
Aggregate Market value of quoted investments s -
Aggregate book value of un-quoted investments 0.05 0.09
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - 0.06

7 Investment Others

investrnent Measured at fair Value through OCI
Investments in Equity Shares of Other Companies - Quoted, fully paid-up
5,00,000 (Previous Year: 5,00,000) Facor Alloys Limited of  1/- each 0.33 0.36

investment Measured at amortised cost
Government Securities - Unquoted

G years National Savings Certificates 0.01 0.01
0.34 0.37

Investments at fair value through OCI (fully paid) reflect investment in quoted securities. These equity shares are designated as
FVTOCI as they are not held for trading purpose. Thus, disclosing their fair value fluctuation in profit or loss will not reflect the
purpose of holding. Decrease in amount of Quoted securities is due to decline in market value of shares.

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 0.33 0.36
Aggregate Market value of quoted investments 0.33 0.3?
0.01 0.0

Aggregate book value of un-quoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Equity Investments in FACOR Alloys Limited are pledged as collateral against Non-Convertible Debentures, the details related to
which have been described in Note 24 on “Borrowings”.

8 Financial Assets - Others
Financial assets at amortised cost

Security deposits 17.66 5.31
Fixed Deposits with Banks* 15.96 31.70
33.62 37.00

*Fixed Deposits include Lien Marked FDs of maturity less than 12 months which will be renewed after maturity until business
requirement.

Sensitivity: Internal (C3)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 Marc® % ve&an!cl :
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(¥ In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

9 Other Non-Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good

Capital Advances* 2.35 16.29
Balance with Government Authorities** 17.18 17.18
Prepaid Expenses 0.50 0.03
Unsecured, considered doubtful 5.46 5.46
Provision for Doubtful Advances (5.46) (5.46)

20.03 33.50

* Capital advance not include related party suppliers.

** Balance with Governmenit Authorities includes deposit with Government Authorities of ¥ 15.38 Crs, Royalty of ¥ 0.93 Cr and VAT
receivable of € 0.86 Cr. Out of this 15.38 Crs, the entity had paid deposits under protest to various authorities aggregating to ¥ 12.02
Crs. By the virtue of the NCLT approved resolution plan dated 30 January 2020 and as per the HC order dated 10 December 2021,
the demands raised by various departments of the government are to be set aside and accordingly the deposits under protest for
those demands are to be refunded.

10 Inventories

Raw materials (At Cost) 94.43 64.96
Stock-in-Process (At Cost) 1.28 1.97
Finished Products (At cost or NRV) 2.96 5.71
Stores and spares (at cost) 15.19 11.35

113.86 83.98

For method of valuation for each class of inventories Refer Note 2.B (K).

11 Trade Receivables

Unsecured,Considered good 28.05 2.69

28.05 2.69
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule

As at 31 As at 31

Particulars
Unsecured-Undisputed
Not Due 18.53 -
Less than 6 months 9.51 2.69
6 months — 1 year 0.01 -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - c
More than 3 years = =
T ;tal ! 28.05 2.69
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables - 2-69
Total Trade receivables 28.05 5

For amounts due and terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, see note 46.

No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally orjoi.ntly witp any other person. Nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a

member.
Trade receivables are non-interast bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days. There are no unbilled receivables, hence the

same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
There are no Secured-Undisputed and Unsecured-Disputed Trade Receivables.

described in Note

Book Debts are pledged as collateral against Non-Convertible Debentures, the details related to which ha
24 on “Borrowings”.
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(¥ In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

12 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Balance with banks

On current account 4.02 8.17
Cash on hand - 0.00
4.02 8.17

At 31 March 2023, the company had available 2 10 Crs (31 March 2022 : % 0 Cr) of undrawn cash credit limit.

13 Other Bank Balance

Bank deposits 18.00 83.36
18.00 83.36

Bank deposits earn interest at fixed rate based on respective deposit rates on an average of 3-4% p.a.

14 Loans
Loans to employees 0.19 -
0.19 -
15 Other Financial Assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Security Deposits 0.87 0.18
interest accrued on term deposits 0.98 1.30
1.85 1.48
18 Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax ) 41.96 0.41
41.96 0.41
17 Other Current Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Advance related to Supplies 44.18 84.18
Balance with government authorities 25.67 0.87
Prepaid Expenses 8.27 3.89
Others 0.01 0.12
Unsecured, considered doubtful 4.57 4.50
Less:Provision for Doubtful Advances (4.57) (4.50)

78.13 89.06

Sensitivity: internal (C3)
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18.

(¥ In Crores)
Share Capital As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Authorised :
7,07,00,00,000 (Previous Year - 4,72,00,00,000) Equity Shares of 2 1/- each 707.00 472.00
23,00,000 (Previous Year - 800,000) 0.01% Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each 23.00 8.00
730.00 480.00
Issued, subscribed & fully paid up:
34,00,01,800 (Previous Year - 34,00,13,800) Equity Shares of € 1/- each 34.00 34.00
34.00 34.00

(a) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote
per share.

(b) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets, if any of the company

afier distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by shareholders.

(c) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

(in Crores)
Number of Shares Amount
Qutstanding at the 1 April 2021 34.00 34.00
Changes during the period o =
Outstanding at the 31 March 2022 34.00 34.00
Changes during the period* 0.00 -
Outstanding at the 31 March 2023 34.00 34.00

*1800 Shares alloted to the shareholder of FACOR Power Limited (Transferor Company)-Balasore Alloys Limited and 12,000 shares
transfer to capital reserve as per scheme of Amalgamation approved by NCLT, Cuttack vide their order dated 15 November 2022.

(d) Qut of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their

subsidiaries lasscciates are as below:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Vedanta Limited (Holding Company) 33,99,99,994 33,99,99,994
{e) Details of shareholders hoiding more than 5% shares in the company*
Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of Shares % held  No. of Shares % held
Vedanta Limited (Holding Corpany) 33,99,99,994 99.99% 33,99,99,994 99.99%

* The % of holding has been calculated on the issued and subscribed share capital as at the respective palance sheet dates. !
As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents legal ownership of

shares.

Sensitwity. Internal (C3)



FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED -
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 202: = vedanta

(¥ In Crores)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
19  Other equity
(a) Capital Reserves
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,161.37 1,161.37
Addition during the year* 0.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 1,161.37 1,161.37
* Refer note 50 on Business combination.
(b) General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 192.00 192.00
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the statement of Profit & Loss - -
Balance at the end of the year 192.00 192.00
(¢} Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (602.66) (1,674.20)
Due to merger effect (16.92) 869.00
Add: Profit for the year afier taxation as per statement of Profit and Loss 292.09 202.54
(327.51) (602.66)
{d) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.37 2.16
Addition during the year (0.65) (1.79)
Balance at the end of the year (0.28) 0.37
Total Equity {a+b+c+d) 1,025.58 751.08

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Capital reserve
The balance in capital reserve has mainly arisen consequent to merger of FACOR Power Limited with FACOR.
Refer note 50 on Business combination.

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified
percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution
in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less
than the total distributable reserves for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), the requirement to
mandatory transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn.

Other Comprehensive income
(a) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:

Actuarial gains and losses. I
The return or: plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

Any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset).

(b) Fair value of Investment.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
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(¥ In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Borrowings

From related parties Vedanta Ltd (Holding Company) * 22.03 22.03

Non - convertible debentures** 50.50 106.32

less: Current maturity of Non - convertible debentures (50.50) (55.82)

22.03 72.53

* During the year, interest rate has changed to 6M SBI MCLR (PY: 10.5% fixed) based on the addendum with Vedanta Ltd. The said
loan from Vedanta Limited is due after the NCDs have been fully repaid.

™ NCDs third instailment paid in March 2023 and ast installment which is due in March 2024 is reclassified to Current Borrowings.

Movable Property, Motor Vehicles, Book Debts, Trade Mark and Equity Investments in Facor Alloys Limited are pledged as collateral
against Non-Convertible Debentures.

L.ease Liabilities (¥ in Crores)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Non-current Current Non-current Current
L.ease Liabilities* 0.17 0.00 0.17 -
0.17 0.00 0.17 -

* The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars (¥ in Crores)
As at 31 March 2022 0.17
Less: Lease land rent charges FY 2022-23 (0.02)
Add: Lease liability Interast unwinded for FY 2022-23 0.02
As at 31 March 2023 0.17
Provisions
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 47) 1.14 0.88
Provision for compensated absences 2.25 2.14
Provision for mine restoration & decommissioning* 4.58 1.63
7.97 4.65

" The movernent in provisions for restoration, rehabilitation and environmentat costs is as follows

(Zin Crores)
Particulars Amount
As At 01 April 2021 1.43
0.20

Unwinding of discount
Revision in estimates

Exchange differences -
At 31 March 2022 1.63

Unwinding of discount 2.95

Revision in estimates -

Exchange differences i
4.58

At 31 March 2023

Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs

The provisions for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental liabilities represent the management's best estimate. The principal
restoration and rehabilitation provisions are recorded within mines where a legal obligation exists relating to the mining fields, where
costs are expected to be incurred in restoring the site of production facilities at the end of the producing life of mine. The Compa?ny
recognises the full cost of site restoration as a liability when the obligation to rectify environmental damage arises of the costs which
will be incurred in the future to meet the Company’s obligations under existing Indian law and the terms of the Company's exploration
and other licences and contractual arrangements. These amounts are calculated by considering discount rates 6.84% apd become
payable at the end of the producing life of mine and are expected to be incurred over a period of 13 years for Ostapal Mine ,8 years
for kathapal mine and 36 years for Kalarangitta mine. An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises
when anvironmental disiurbance is caused by the development or ongoing production from mines.

Sansitwity: Internal (€3)
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(¥ In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

23 Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

Deferred Tax Liability:

Difference between Book and income Tax depreciation 107.81 13.53
Others 6.30 -
Beferred Tax Assets:

Disallowance u/s 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to be allowed on payment basis 0.96 -
Current year Unabsorbed Depreciation and Business Loss* 184.69 -
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) 71.54 (13.53)

“Section 72 A of Income Tax Act, 1961 allows carry forward and set off of accumulated losses / unabsorbed depreciation in case of
amalgamation / demerger. Total Business Losses amounting to ¥ 308 Crs and Unabsorbed Depreciation amounting to ¥ 405 Crs
claimed in Revised Income Tax Return filed after merger of FPL with FACOR.

24 Borrowings

25

26

From Banks - Bills Discounting* 21.66 -
Current maturities of long-term debts ** 50.50 55.82
72.16 55.82

* Bills discounting interest rate is 8.29% and maturity with in one year.
™ An amount mentioned in the Resolution Plan, forming part of the Admitted Financial Debt will be converted into zero coupon,
secured and unlisted Non Convertible Debentures ('NCD) of the Company and will be issued to the Financial Creditors in proportional
manner (Deferred consideration’) on the terms and conditions rnentioned in the Resolution Plan. As per the Resolution Plan,Non
convertible debentures has to be paid in four equal instalments, third being due on 31 March 2023.Accordingly the company has
made payment of the third instalment amount to the financial creditors directly to there accounts amounting to ¥ 71.63 crores.

NCDs third instaliment paid in March 2023 and last installment is due in March 2024 is shown in Current Borrowings.

Movable Property, Motor Vehicles, Book Debts, Trade Mark and Equity Investments in Facor Alloys Limited are pledged as collateral
against Non-Convertible Debentures.

Operational Buyers Cradit/ Suppliers' Credit

Operationai Buyers Credit 12.68 -
12.68 -

Operaticnal Buyers'/Suppliers' Credit is availed in foreign currency from Indian banks at interest rate of (6M SOFR+ Spread) as at 31

March 20283. The maximumn tenure of these trade credits is 180 days from the value date of buyers credit.

Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 11.73 2.80
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 183.37 79.98

195.10 82.78

For amount due and terms and conditions relating to related party payables, refer note 46.
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled up to 90 days terms.
For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes, refer to Note 48.

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
R o As at 31 March As at 31
e 2023 March 2022

Undisputed dues- Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Unbilled Dues* 0.14 2
Not due - -
Less than 1 year 11.59 2.£i7
1-2 years - '
2-3 years i

) rs
‘lM;: g 11.73 2.87
Undisputed dues- Other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Unkitled Dues* 18.06 " 7-8
Not due 34.31 74.14
Less than 1 year 130.99 ’
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Total

*Includes Unbilied dues 31 March 2022 is Nil
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED A ()
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 - e

(% In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
The disclosures relating to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises have been furnished to the extent such parties have been

identified on the basis of the intimation received from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. There is no interest paid/payable as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: NIL)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 11.73 280
(i) Interest due on above _ 2
(iit) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year. - =
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appainted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act, 2008.
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.
(vi)The amount of further interast remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest ues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006 - -
11.73 2.80
27 Derivatives
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts at FVTPL (Refer note 48) 0.13 -
0.13 =
28 Other Financiat Liabilities
Security Deposits 28.29 5.47
Employee Beneits Payable 0.04 3.10
23.33 8.57
29 Other current liabilities
Statutory liabilities 2.52 21.07
Advance from customers 5.62 5.54
Other liabilities 0.14 005
8.28 26.65

a) Statutory liabilities includes payable for PF,PT, ESIC ,Goods and Services Tax and withholding tax. :
b) Advance from customers are contract liabilities to be settlied through delivery of goods. The amount of such palances as on 01 April
2022 was ¥ 5.54 Crs. During the current year, the Company has recognised revenue of out of such opening balances. All other
changes are either due tc receipt of fresh advances or exchange differences.

c) Other liabilities includes other deduction from salary.

30 Provisions

Provision for gratuity (Refer note 47) 86752 g. ; g
Provision for compensated absences 1:36 252

31 Current tax liabilities
- 80.18

Provision for Income Tax (Net of advance tax )
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 %vedcmm '

(¥ In Crores)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from Operations

Sale of manufactured goods 769.44 832.90
Sale of power 4.12 3.82
Revenue from contract with customers 773.56 836.72
Notes:-

(a) Majority_of the Corppany’s sales are against advance or are against letters of credit/ cash against documents/ guarantees of
banks of national standing. Where sales are made on credit, the amount of consideration does not contain any significant financing
cornponent as payment terms are within 90 days.

(b) Revenue Details.

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Farticulars External Related Party External Related Party
Domestic sale of manufaciured goods 511.98 5.82 494.85 6.69
Export sale of manufactured goods* 251.64 - 331.36 -
Sale of power 4.12 - 3.82 -
Total 767.74 5.82 830.03 6.69
* Including deemed export
33 Other Operating Revenues
Export Incentives 1.17 1.20
Scrap sale 3.16 2.76
Others* 0.45 8.29
4.78 12.25
* Others includes excess provision/ liability written back.
34 Other income
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
-On bank deposits 3.68 3.55
-Others 0.64 0.08
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net) - 0.46
Miscellaneous Receipis* 13.42 0.25
17.73 4.34

“Miscellaneous Receipts includes GST Compensation cess and GST receivable due to merger amounting to ¥ 11.97 Crs.

Facor Power Limited (FPL) was charging off its GST & GST compensation cess paid on input services to Statement of Profit and
Loss because its final cutput (Power) was exempt from GST. Upon merger of FACOR & FPL pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation,
FACOR has now filed for claiming Input Tax Credit ('ITC') relating to FPL's input services for the period October 2020 to November
2022 (i.e. from effective date of merger till the date of actual order) as this ITC can be utilised against the final output of FACOR on

which GST is applicable.

3§ Cost of Materials Consumed 267.14 261.40
36 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Process
Opening balance
Finished Goods 5.71 11.12
Work in progress 1.97 1.36
Total opening balance 7.68 12.48
Closing balance
Finished Goods 2.96 5.71
Work in progress 1.23 1.97
Total closing balance 4.18 7.68
3.49 4.80

Changes in inventory
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED -
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 §gavedcmfu i

=

(% In Crores)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

37 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries and wages* 36.98 34.64
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.01 2.01
Contribution to Gratuity and Superannuation (Refer Note 47) 0.99 0.73
Staff welfare expenses 5.98 4.39

45.95 41.76

Code on Socia! Sscurity, 2020

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which
the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes
effective.

38 Finance Cost

Interest on loans 17.42 12.30
Bank Charges and Commission 0.47 0.26
Other borrowing costs* (6.16) 2.97
Interest exp on !ease liability 0.02 -
11.76 15.53

* Other Borrowing cost includes reversal of Interest on Electricity duty due to One Time Settlement of  5.21 Crs and interest
reversal of Sec 234 B and Sec 234 C of Income tax Act, 1961 relating to FY 2020-21 due to filing of revised return amounting to ¥

2.79 Crs.

38 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation on Property,plant & equipment (Note-no-3 & 4 b)
Amortisation on intangible assets (note No-5)

41.67 2410
1.94 1.1
43.61 25.21
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

40 Other Expenses

Year Ended

(¥ In Crores)
Year Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Mining Handling & Other Production expenses 28.32 17.21
Power and fuel 93.35 31.17
Eleciricity duty on auxiliary consumption 1.00 1.83
Repairs and maintenance:
- Buiildings 3.76 3.69
- Plant and machinery 10.01 7.03
Freight, Shipment & Sales Expenses 8.32 8.34
Consumption of Stores & Spares parts 31.62 33.84
Rent 0.31 0.18
Insurance 2.99 2.18
Rates and Taxes 0.65 0.56
Provision for Doubtful advances 0.07 (3.82)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 1.07 0.31
Rernuneration to Auditors (Refer note 40.1) 1.15 0.78
Directors' sitling fees 0.05 0.15
Commission to Non Wholetime Direciors 0.50 1.02
Royalty 62.13 63.92
Other operating expenses 23.64 23.88
Water charges 1.94 1.82
Expense towards corporate social responsibility (Refer note 54) 2.87 1.14
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 0.40 e
Advertisement expenses 0.08 0.15
Legal Professional expenses ’ 8.35 7.78
Corporate Allocation Expenses 14.20 5.97
Security expenses 4.09 3.63
Sundry balances Written off 0.37 0.41
Travelling expenses 0.78 0.76
Miscellanecus expenses 10.78 3.15
312.80 217.07
40.1 Remuneration to auditors:
Statutory Audit Fees 0.15 0.06
0.15 0.06
41 Exceptional lterns
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and mining rights (refer note 3( c)) 18.01 -
Investment written off * 0.01 -
18.02 -

* FACOR Reality and Infrastructure Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (FACOR), has now been
struck off w.e.f. 13 January 2023.Hence, the Loss of investment is recognised in Exceptional ltems in statement of profit & loss.

42 Tax Expenses
{a) Income Tax Expenses

Current Tax Expenses

Current year - 3—50) 81_.71
Adjustments in respect of previous year e o
Deferred Tax Expenses

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (85.29) 3:593
Total Tax Expenses (198.78) 84.
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 ngedcmm

atiiery

(Z In Crores)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

{b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit/(loss) before tax 93.30 287.53
Applicable tax rate 0.25 0.25
Computed Tax Expenses 23.48 72.37
Tax Effect of:

Deferred tax asset recognised on business losses of FPL* (106.86) -
Tax Expense - adjustment of PY** (113.50) -
Other permanent differences (1.90) -
Tax Expenses recognised in profit and loss (198.78) 72.37
Effective Tax Rate -213% 25%

* In the current year, ¥ 107 Crore of deferred tax assets (net) largely on unaborbed depreciation and tax losses of Facor Power
Limited which is available for utilisation from taxable profits of subsequent years has been recognised post its merger with Facor

Alloys Corporation Limited. Based on the financial forecasts of the merged entity, it is probable to realise the deferred tax assets.
Refer note 2.E & 50

** This relates to reversal of tax for AY 2021-22 & AY 2022-23 pursuant to utilisation ofunaborbed depreciation and tax losses of
Facor Power Limited post merger with FACOR. The Company has revised the returns for both the assessment years to reflect the
same. This has resulted in tax recoverable of Rs 42 crores which is disclosed under Current Tax Assets.

43 Earning per Share
Profit after tax attributable to equity share holders for Basic and Diluted EPS
Profit for the period 292.09 202.54
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 34.00 34.00
EPS - Basic and Diluted 8.59 5.96
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED.

denty
Netes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 :

44 Cc itments, contir

and guarantees

(A) Capital And Other Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts on Capital Account remaining to be executed and not provided for in accounts ¥ 35.45 Crs (Previous Year % 54.00 Crs).

(B) Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, since disputed ¥ 2.12 Crs
(Previous Year ¥ 0.22 Crs) have been debited to Advance Account.

(Previous Year % 0.32 Crs). Amounts paid under protest ¥ 0.38 Crs

(¥In Crores)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
— Amount Involved Paid under protest Amount Involved Paid under protest
Excise 0.40 0.07 = =
Employees and Ex Employees 0.01 = 5 2
ining Cases” 1.71 0.31 1.71 0.22
Total 212 0.38 1.71 0.22

*Out of the total € 1.71 Crs, amount of ¥ 1.4 Crs comprises of Ground Water Tax for which th
Enginger Jaraka Irrigation Division against the demanded amoul
amount of ¥ 0.31 Cr comprises of Surface Rent and Dead Rent.

{C) Contingent Assets
The company has no contingent asset as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

{D) Guarantees

e Company has made representation before the Executive

nt as the same is not payable as per the NCLT Cuttack Division order. The balance

Total

Details of Bank Guarantees are given below: (€ In Crores)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023] As at 31 March 2022
Mining Authorities 8.5 5.
Pollution control Board 0. 0.1
Coal Linkage 1 2.46
Sale of power through open access 0. 0.39
Water linkage 1.68 =
12.66 11.51

45 Segment information

Segment information is presented in respect of the com,
management and internal reporting structure.

Operating Segments

pany’s key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the company's

Tnhe Management Information System of the Company identifies and monitors Ferro Alloys as the business segment. The Company is managed

organisationally as a single unit. In the opinion of the mana
nature of these activities are governed by the same set of ri
only one Reportable Segment for the Company which is

Entity wise disclosures

gement, the Company is primarily engaged in the business of Ferro Alloys. As the basic
sk and retumn, these constitute and are grouped as a single segment. Accordingly, there is
"Ferro Alloys”, hence no specific disclosures have been made.

(A) information about products and services
During the year, the Company primarily operates in one product line, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.
(B) Information about Geographical Areas
The Company derives revenue from following major geographical areas:
(Z In Crores)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Area 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Qutside India (Includas Deemed Export) 251.64 331.36
Domestic 521.92 505.35
All the non-current assets of the Company other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets are located in
India,
{C} Information about Major Customers (from External Customers)

The Company derives revenues from the following customers where each contributes to 10 per cent or more of an entity's revenues:

(¥ In Crores)

External Customers

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

84.61

97.90
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FERRQO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED.,
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

46 Related Party Disclosure:-
I. List of Related Parties and relationship:-
(A} Name and nature of relationship with the related party where control exists:
1

Facor Realty and Infrastructure Limited - Subsidiary Company and Struk off during the year
2 Facor Power Limited - Subsidiary Company and merged with FACOR

B

Other Entities with whom transactions have taken place during the year :

Vedanta Limited- Holding company
Hindustan Zinc Limited

ESL Steel Limited

Bharat Aluminium Company Ltd

Vedanta Ltd Sesa Iron Ore

Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Vedanta Limited - Sterlite Copper

Vizag General Cargo Berths Private Limited.
Vedanta Aluminium Limited - Langigarh
10 Vedenta Aluminium Limited - Jharsuguda
11 Vedanta Limited - Carin Oil & Gas

12 FACOR Superannuation Trust

13 FACOR Employees Gratuity Trust

DD ND G A WN

. Transactions with Related Parties during the year ended 31 March 2023 in the ordinary course of business.

(€ In Crores)
With Subsidiary Companies Other Entities with whom transactions
Particulars taken place
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Purchase of Goods - - 3.88 0.20
)} |Sale of Goods - - 5.82 6.69
ii Purchase of Assets - 0.14 =
iv) |Sale of Assets - 0.03 0.00
v) nterest paid /accrued and not paid - - 1.61 2.35
vi Recovery of expenses 0.50 0.97
vii) |Reimbursement of Expenses - 0.01 18.20 9.13
viii)_|Sitting Fee and Commission paid to Directors - 8 0.04 0.43
Balances outstanding at the year end -
ix) |a) Long term borrowings - - 22.03 22.03
¢) Other current liabilities - 0.03 11.88 .99
d) Other current assets - - 0.73 55
(2 In Crores)
Sl.No Particulars Relationship 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 |Purchase Of Goods
ESL Steels Limited Others 3.88 %
Sesa Resources Lid Others * 0.12
Vedanta Ltd Sesa Iron Ore Others = 0.08
Total 3.88 0.20
2 |Sale of Goods
ESL Steels Limited Others 5.82 6.69
Total 5.82 6.69
3 |Interest Paid/accrued and not paid
Vedanta Limited Holding Company 1.61 2.35
Total 1.61 2.35
4 |Purchase of Assets
ESL Steels Limited 0.01 -
Vedanta Ltd Sesa iron Ore 0.12
Total 0.14 -
5 |Sale of Assets
Vedanta Ltd Sesa iron Ore 0.01 0.00
ESL Steels Limited 0.01 =
Total 0.03 0.00
6 |Recovery of Expenses »
Facor Realty And Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary - Ogg
Vedanta Limited Holding Company - 0.
Vizag General cargo Berth Pvt Ltd Others 0.03 % 0-3
Bharat Aluminium Company Ltd Others 0.13 o
Hindustan Zinc Limited Others 0.13 .
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Langhigarh Others 0-12 s 1-2
Vedanta Ltd Sesa iron Ore Others 0.32 0.02
ESL steel Limited Others Q. 0.07
Talwandi Sabo Power Limited Others - 0.04
Vedanta Limited - Sterlite Cooper Others 5 5-0 0-97
Total . 4
7 |Reimbrushment of Expenses i Ty
Bharal Aluminium Company Ltd 'Others 44 56 6~24
Vedanta Limited Holding Company 5.54 1-95
Vedanta Ltd Sesa lron Ore Others 0-38 0'46
Vedanta Limited - Sterlite Cooper Others 5 .
Facor Realty And Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary 0-31 b
Superannuation to employees Others 0401 0-05
Subscription of FIMMI Others OAOG i1
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Langhigarh Others 0-02 015
Hindustan Zinc Limited Others 0-30 ik
ESL steel Limited Others 0-02 .
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Jharsuguda Others i o
‘ Vedanta zinc Intemational g::z:: _ o8
alwandi Sabo Power Limited
i Total 18.20 9.13
s Sitting Fee and Commission paid to
Directors 48 555
Commission 0.08 0.04
Sitting Fees st 024 543
10 [Balances Outstanding at the year end
(A} Long Term Borrowings ) 22,03
Vedanta Limited Holding Company iggg 2
Total
{B) Other Current Liabilities ) o
Vedanta Limited Holdmc?"::omnanv 18% o
Vadanta Ltd Sesa lron Ore Oth:: 0.02 0.06
Vedanta Limited - Sterlite Copper : 0.00
Vedanta Limited - Cairn Oil & Gas Others N 003
Facor Realty And Infrastructure Limited Subsidiary ey o0
Total
{C) Other Current Assets ) ] ]
Vedanta Limited Holdrrg&c:panv p— fugs
ESL steel Limited ol 0.03 i
Vizag General cargo Berth Pvt Ltd S 0.05 _
Bharat Aluminium Company Ltd ars 0.04 B
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Jharsuguda Others 1 )
Vedanta Alluminium Limited -Langhigarh Others 5
.55
Total 0.73 1.5:




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED. . £ vedanta

Forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

47 Employee Benefits

The Companv Contributes To The Following Post-Emplovment Defined Benefit Plans In India

Defined Contribution Plans:

Amount of €2.01 Crores (Previous Year ¥2.01 Crores) is recognised as expenses and included in "Employee Benefits Expense" in Note 37 of the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Plan :

The company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less favourable
than the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is funded with SBI Life Insurance in form of qualifying insurance policy.

The company also extends benefit of compensated absences to the employees, whereby they are eligible to carry forward their entitlement of privilege leave for
encashment. This is unfunded plan.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 31 March 2023. The present
value of the defined benefit obligations and the refated current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's
financial statements as at balance sheet date:

(% In Crores)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Net Defined Benefit Liabilitv

Liability for Gratuity 1.87 1.01
Liabilitv for PL Encashment 2.89 2.74
Total Emplovee Benefit Liabilitv 4.76 3.75
Non-Current 3.39 3.02
Current 1.37 0.73

(A) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation
(¥ In Crores)
| 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the beainning of the vear 0.99 10.61

Interest Cost 0.07 0475
Current Service Cost 0.65 0.52
Actuarial _Losses/(Geains) 0.36 1.94
Benefits_Paid (0.21) (4.24)
|Present value of Dsfined Benefit Qblication at the close of the vear 1.87 9.57

(B} Changes inthe FairValue of Plan Assetsand reconciliation thereof (% In Crores)

|Particulars. 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 |
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 09.6%8 103930
Add : Expected Return on Plan Assets K (0,19)
Add/(Less) : Acluarjal Gains/{Losses) 0-01 3
Add ; Contributions i

Less : Benefits Paid (2.08) (4524)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the close of the year 8.14

(C) Amount Recoanised in the Balance Sheet (€ In Crores)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
10.01

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obliaation o 865036
Less : Fair Value of Plan Assets B i

Present Value of unfunded obligation 1.87 2.47)

(DY Amount Recoanised inthe Statement of Profit and Loss are as Follows :

ars.

(€ In Crores)
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Particulars
Charged to statement of Profit and Loss E 55
Current_Service Cost 265 e
Interest _Cost/{Income) o o
Charged to statement of Profit and Loss T —
Net actuzrial_loss/(gain) (0'3_5_)_[ 12
(E) Investment Details: sl i

Funds Managed by Insurer (investment with insurer)
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FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED, Svedanta

Forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(F) Actuarial Assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date

Particut 31 March 2023 ] 31 March 2022
Discount Rate 7.39% 7.14%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00%|

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuariai valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply
and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

The Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets is determined considering several applicable factors, mainly the composition of Pian Assets held, assessed risks,
historical results of return on Plan Assets and the Company’s policy for Plan Assets Management.

The expected contributions for Defined Benefit Plan for the next financial year will be in line with FY 2022-23

{ fo] ]
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

i) Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
iiy Mortalty rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2012 - 14) 100% of IALM (2012 - 14)
iii) Attrition at Ages Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%)

Up to 30 Years 12 2 12 2

From 31 to 44 years 13 2 13 2

Above 44 years 15 2 i5 2
(H) Bifurcation of Actuarial Gain/L.oss on Obligation 3 (% In Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2023] 31 March 2022
a)Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption 5 -
b) Actuarial (Gain)/Loss an ansing from Change in Financial Assumption (0.09) (0.08)
C)Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience Adjustment 0.39 1.99
(I}Actuarial Gain/Loss on Plan Asset (% In Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Expected Interest income 0.68 0.90
Actual Incorne on Plan Asset 0.63 0.72
Actuarial gain f{loss) for the year on Assat (0.06) 0.19

(J)  Sensitivitv Analvsis:

Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate ,expected salary increase and employee turnover. The
sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of the reporting period , while holding all
other assumptions constant. The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Change in discaunting rafe (delta effect of +/- 0.5%) (0.17) 0.18 (0.17) 0.17
Change in rate of salary increase (delta efrect of +/- 0.5%) 0.19 (0.17) 0.18 (0.17)

{K) Risk Analysis: ) ] )
Valuations are based on cartain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow -

A) Salary increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

B) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation
date can impact the liability.

C) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

E) Withdrawals — Actuai withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Senstivty internat (C3)
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Notes forming part ¢f the financial statements as at and fer the year ended 31 March 2023

48 Financial instruments
A Financial assets and liabs
The accounting classficatic

5
of each category of financial instruments, and their canrying amounts, are set out below:
{® In Crores)

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Binanciai asgets Fair value other B Fair value other
Falr value through profitiioss comprehensive Amortised Cost F"';’;’;‘;“n':::'““h comprehensive Amortised Cost

Non-currert investments * % Income B - im:omeo =
Other non-current financial 255815 2 s 3562 - r ;
Trads reces - . 202 - - 37.00
Cash ard cash 5 % 402 : .
Bank belances othar than abeve 5 5 500 = *
‘Cther current francal assats B . 203 3 S
Total - 0.34 85.73 - 0.37 132.70

"Excludas investmants (in equity a1d preferancs chares; In subsidiarios, associates and Joint ventures which are carried at cost and hence are not required to be disclosed as per tnd AS 107 *Financial Instruments Disclosures”,

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Eiasncial Uiakiliias - Fair value other - Fair value other
Fair value through profitioss comprehensive Amortised Cost | F2Ir ;’;‘u";fn::‘s':“"h comprehensive Amortised Cost
income i

Ni it financia) labilities i
Borrawings 8 - 703 5
Loase Liabiktios ) B 0.17 5 " e
Current financial abifies -
Botrowings* - = 72.18 - - 55.82
Trads payeblos = - 195.10 2 - 82.78
Cporational Buyers Credit - - 12,68 - - -
Cetivatives. 0.13 - - - - -
Othet finarcial fat ias - : FERE] - z 557

0.43 - 326.47 - - 219.87

*Berowing includes Bis ciscounting,

B. Falr value hicrarchy
The Cotnpany uses the following hiararchy fer datorrrining and/or d selosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:
) Levol 1: quoted prizes (unedjustac) in active markets for identica: assets or iiabillies.
{) Lovel 2: Inputs other thar quoted prices includad withn Lovel 1 that are observabla for the asset or liabiiity, either directly (i e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),
(i) Levol 3: inputs for the asset of liabi fity that are not based on observable market data (unobsarvable inputs)
The below tabie summarises the categerias of financial assets ard (iabilties as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 measured at fair value:

As at 51 March 2023
{®In Crores)

Financlal Assets Level 1 Level2 Leveld
At fair value through other ive income

0.34 - %,
Total, 0.34 . -

. {®in Crores)
Financial (iabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level3
At f2ir value through profit ot loss
tive: as hedaing i
Derivatives - 013 -
Total - 0.13 -
As at 31 March 2022
{®in Crores) g

Financlal Assets. Level i Level2 Leveld
Af fafr value throuah other income

0.37. 5 2
Total 0.37 = 2

C.  Risk Manaasment Framewock

A company is exposed fo uncarainties owning to the sactor in which it is operating. Tho Company is conscious of the fact that any risk that could have a material impact on its business should bo included in its risk profile. Accordingly, in order o contain /
mitigate tho risk, the Company has an approved & Rick management policy which is raviewed by th management from time to time.

The Company's Risk Managemient framework is designd to identify, assess and monitor various risks related to key business and strategic abjectivas and lead to the formulation of a mitigation plan. Major risks In particular are menitared regularly at Executiva
maatings of the Company to keap abraast of such issues and the Policy was reviewed by the Management,

The Company's Managcment monitors campliance v/th the Company's risk management policy and procadures, and raviews the adequacy of the risk management framawork in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Management is assisted in its
versight rolo y Intarnal Audt. Intemal Ausit uncarteios both regular and achos feview of risk management controls end procedures, the results of which are reported to the Management

+ Cradit Risk

Crecit sisk is tho fisk of firancial loss to company if & customar or counterparty to the financial instrument fails to meet its financial obligations, and arises principally from the company’s receivables from custormers,

Finangial that 51 sujoct to ions of crodit risk principally consist of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other financial assets. Noie of the financial instruments of tha Company result in material
cancentration of cradit isk cther then trada rece vasle.

The sompany maintans its Gash and cash equivalums and Bank Daposts with senks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating and also reviews their credit rating on a timely basis.

Tre gross canying arvunt cf tiade facei/aslas is ¥ 23.05 Crores (31 March 2022 2 2.69 Crores.)
Cusing tho pailed, the Comparny has written-off t:ace receivablas Amounting 1o ¥ 0.00 Crores. The Company's management also pursues all eptions for recovery of dues wharever necessary based on its internal assessment. A default on a financial asset is
when countarperty fails to make paymants within 365 days when thay fall duo.

il. Liauidity Risk o ;
Liquidry fisk rofers to risk of financiai digtress or exto ordinary high financing cost arsing dus to shertaga of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requira financing, The Company's bjective is to maintain at alfimes
optimum fovels of liquidiy to maat ks cash and collateral requiraments. Precassas and palicios refated to such risk are overseen by senior managemant and management moritors the Company's net liquidity position through rofling forecast on the basis of

axpected cash Mlows.

() Financing Arrangements

Cetals of funding facillies ure given below: it
[Particuiars Total facility Drawn Un drwan

Fund Based Limit 30.00 2166 834
Non Fund Based Limit 70,00 4424 2576
Tota! 100.00 66.90 3410




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED.

Netes forming part of the financial statemants as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
{b) Maurities of Financlal Liabilities
The folloving are the ramaining contractual matuitios of financial liabiities at the reporting date. The amounts are gress and undiscounted, and excluding contractual interest payments and exclude the

imgpect of retting {%1n Crores)
) Carrying Amounts cash flows
Perticulars 31 March 2023 Total Upto 1 year Between 1 and 2 years | Between 2 and 5 More than 6 year
ivative financial fiabjties. i

orrowings (Vadarta Loan) 220 2203 - 2203 - -

ings (NGD and Bilfs Discounting) 721 7216 7218 - - .

1ada payeblos 195.1 195.1 195.10 - - -

tional Buyers Creait 12, 12,66 1268 - . -
Loasa liabidies o ] - - - 017

Dorivative: [ 1 013 - - -

Other finar.cial ablfiss 23 2333 2333 - - -
Total ive labilities 325 325.60 303.40 22.03 - 047

i Carrying Ameunts cash flow:
Particulars 31 March 2022 Total Upto 1 year Between 1 and 2 years | Between2 and 5 More than 5 year
vears

Borrow: 126.35 12835 §582 5050 2203 -

Jrada payebles 8278 82.78 8278 - - -
Lassa tiabiities .17 017 - - - 017

Crher finarcia' iabillie: 57 857 857 - - -
Total non-derivative labiltias 1 219.87 219.87 14747 60.50, 22.03 | 0.17

it Market risk
Warket isk i tha sk that cranges in market prius, foreign exchana rates and interest rates = wi afect the Company’s income or the valuo of ts holdings of fisancial nstrumants. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
@xposutes within aceptable parameters, whila optimising tha rotum

) Eauity Price risk
The company coesn’t have sy of securities listec on any naticnal of international stock exchange. Hence, thera is no Equity Price Risk.

5) Currency Risk

Foragn currancy risk s the risk that i aiue of ftura cash flow of an exposure wil luctuate bacause of changes in foreign exchanga rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes In foreign exchange rates relates primarily o the Company's perating
- The Compeny has feregn currancy trece payables end receivables and . therefora, exposed to 2 foreign sxchangs risk. Foreign currency risk arises ffom future commmercial fassactions wnd fecognised assets and liabilties denominated in a currency

that is nol tho Company's functional curtancy (INR) The rick s managed though a foracast of highty probable foreign currency cash flows.

Exposure to cutrency risk
The summary quartitatve £ oot the Group's exposure Lo sLrrency risk as regortod ta the manegement of the Group is as follows:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

usp. EUR _Usd EUR
Financial Asset
Trads Rocoivatles 18.15 - 004 -
Net exosure to foreian currency riskiassets) 18.16 - 0.04 -
Trads Fayabios 19.18 001 013 -
Buyers Credit' 12,68 - . -
Cerivativa® 0.13 L4 - -
Bills Discounting** 21.66 - 5 -
Net statement of financial sosition exposure 53.65 0.01 013 -

* Buyer's Gredit & Derlvatives - Currency tisk s involved In buyers credi. So. to mitigate the currency risk involved, we hedge through forwards cantract for the principle & interest.
“Bills Discourted ~ POSCO - § Cempany has artangement fer 5% variablo posion that can be deducted by for qualty issues. So, company tako the Bills Discounting facilty for remaining 95% only to avoid the currency risk,
Sensitivity analvsls

A resonably possible strengtening (waakening) of tna INR zgainst all other currancies at 31 March would have affected tha of financial i in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
balow. This analys's assumes that all otk.at varisk es, i particular interest rates, remaln constant,

Profit or loss, net of tax Equity, net of tax
31 March 2023
5% inovemert
usD a.7n 177 a.7n 177
EUR (0.00) 0.00 (0.00) 0.00
31 Warch 2022
5% mevement
uso {0.00) 0.00 {0.00) 0.00

¢)interest Rate Risk | : y
Intersst rata r.3ic ia tha risk that tha ferr value ar fuLre cash Agws of a financia! instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes in market interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies ta achiova an

ostimal matunty profie 2nd finarcing cost.
Following are tha details of the Interast Rate for different Financing arrangements :

Vedenlu's Loas - SBI EM-MCLR Floating
Biis Dizcounted - | - MCLR M + 0.25% spread Fixed
Buyers credit Fixed
Non Convertibla Dabonturos Non Interest bearing

Sensitivity Analvels of Intarest rate Risk

Floating rate financial £3sats are largely mutual fund invastmants waich have debt securities as underlying assets. The feturs from thesa financial assets are linked to market interest rate movemants; howaver the counterparty invests in theagreed securities with
«knovmn maturity tenure and raum and hance has manageable fisk. :

The exposure of the Company's financial assets to interest rate risk

Particulars Jotal Fioatina rate Fixed rate Non-interest bearing
As at 31 March 20:

Firzncials agsets & 133.07 9153 3170 3:;
Finencial liabilities 219.87 0.17] 22.03 197,

As at 31 March 2022

Financials assets 86.07 22.02 :1: : 2543 gz
Fingncial babilities 325.60 22.20 .

Interast rata risk is the risk that tha fair velue of future cash dows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.

[ ha invest 5 i s i nd any decrease in interest rates would result would result in a net in a net decreasa. The
Cons: ng the net imastiment position as at March 31, 2023 and tha investment in bank depesits, bonds and debt mutual funds, any increase in interest rates increase an " in
s;’:a?n anciysi baiow has beon derermined 5aced on the exposure ta interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the batance sheet date The bolow analysis gives the impact of a 0.5% to 2.0% change in interest ratos on floating fate
Anarciai assets’ fabiitios (nef) on profi/(ioss) arc equity arc tepresents managoment's assessment of the possible change in intorest rates.




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATION LIMITED.

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and fer the year ended 31 March 2023

45 Capital Manaaement

The Gompany's objectves vihan managing captal is 1o safequard, maintai a strong credt rati
remalns unchanged frem pievious year. The Copery sats the amaunt of capital required onth
o' internal accruals, eguity cnd short teim bormovdrgs. The Company monitors capital on the

ing and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provida adequate return to
‘@ basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investmy
basis of net debt to equity. Equity comprises all components including ather components ofequity. The

requramert.
(% In Crores
- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
atyty
Cush and cash equivalents (Refer note 12) 40: 8.17
Shert form i - -
Tetal cash (a) 402 817
Total debt (b) 94.35 12852
et debt (c = (ba)) 90.34 120.35
Total equity (equity + not debt) (Refer Statement of charges in Equiz) 1,069.68 785,08
Net debt ta equity ratio (acaring retio) 0,09 0.5

€0 Business Combination
The Hon'ble Natioral C:
Companies Act, 2015,

pany Law Tribunal (NCLT), Cuttack Bench passed an order an order on 15th Mo
o Schemo vias effactive 01 22 November 2022, upon filing of the certiied cepy of

vember 2022 sanctioning the Scheme of Amalgamation of Facor Power |
the NCLT order with Registrar of Companies, Cuttack, Odisha.

The Schema of Amalgamation be sanctloned by tnis Trizural to e binding viith effoct fram appointed dato which is 1 Octobar 2020.

Tre Board of Directors of tha Company at it's moeting neld on 18 Aprit

Cetals of tho purchase consideration the net assets smalaamated end
13,330 oguity sharas having face valua of ¥ 1 each warth © 2,414,278 were issuod as part of

Below is the summary of tha scccunting treatment, which has been given offect

Busitess combination of ent ties under common centrol
) The Company has fecorded ali the assats and Labilties

i) Tte value of investment in equily shara capitat and praference share capital in

i) The differanca betwoen tiie value of assets, liabilties and resarves of Facor Powst

2021 had approved he scher
Curing tha current year, Honbia Natiznal Compary Law Trbunal, Cuttack Benca vide its Crder dated

Shvadanta |

through
ents. The funding fequirements are met through a mixture
Company is not subject to any extemally imposed capital

the consideration paid to minority shareholders of Facor Power Limited with reference to scheme of amalgamation,

accr Power Limited at their respectiva book values as appearing in the books of Facor Power Limited as at tha beginning of April 01, 2021

TheC: 's overall strategy

imited, Subsidiary Company, into the Company, under section 230 & 232 of the

me of amalgamation of Facor Power Limited (transferror Company) into Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited (Transferee. <company) (Schema of amalgamation).
15 November 2022 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Facor Power Limited ('FPLY) into Ferro Alloys Corporation Limited ("FACOR?),

ta in the financial statements pursuant to amalgamation of Facor Power Limited in accordance with the pooling of interest method as faid down by appendix C to IND AS 103:

the books of the Company has been cancelled with the equity share capital and preference share capital appearing in the books of Facor Power Limited.

r Limited taken over by the Company,

Particulars (¥ In Crores)
Book Value of FACOR Power Ltd
Propary, Plant & Fquiment 46087 |
Capital Werkcin-prograss 95.
0
Cther Non-Cumrent Financiel Assels 1.
Sther Non-Current Asgats
Invortoties 7
Trads 1
Cash & Cash Equizlerts 3:
Cther Currart Financal Assats 0.99
Currant Tax Assets; 0.40
Other Cument Assets 1382
Non-Currert Borrowings (1,241.09)
Non-Current Provisions. 41.72)
Curgant Bomowings (6.89)
Trada Payabics 1)
[Other Currant Finangai Liao, (16.73)
Othet curront Liabiities, (18.40)|
Other current provigions, .04)
Reserves 89508
Book valuz of Ascats, Lictility and Reserves as recognised on 230.08
appoirted date
Particuiars Amount
Bcel vaiue of Assets, Labiicy snd Roservas at rezognised on appa nlec 230.06
dats
Loss Faco Vaive o’ 03uity shargs igsund (0.00)
Com tal ceserve 230.06

The differo1co of € 22C 07 Crs betwcen the nat valuo of assets, | eb litios and raserves of the transfer
of tha Company in equity shares of transfaror Company seing cancelled has boen transferred to capital reserve of the Company, as prescribed by the Scheme of amalgamation.

61 Reutatement of Financial Stateinents

The figures for the corresponding pravious year has baen regrouped / feclassified wherever necessary to confirm this
comparative amounts have boon cofroctly restated to reflect the stated matter. The assets of Facor Power Limited have been amal

the stated mattar.

The pravious year Tgures were gudited by a firm of Cnartored Accountants other than S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,

62 Cther matters
Curing March 2023 year ena and early Apal 2025,

the value of investments in the Company cancelled amounting to ® 230.06 has been transforred to Capital reserves

Company doed not eypect 2ny material costs to ba inurree to undertake these remadial measuras. The Company also does not expact any claims/ penaity from customers on account of non-supply of goods.

63 Other Statutorv Infonnation
Details of items of exceptional natura;

() Compliance with approvad Echarme{s) of Amalgamation

ror company acquited and the sum of the face value of new shares issued and allotted pursuant fo scheme of amalgamation and the carrying value of investment

years classification. The assets of Facor Power Limited have been amalgamated as per the Pooling of Interest mathod as per Ind AS 103, The
'gamated as per the Pooling of Interest method as per Ind AS 103. The comparative amounts have been correctly restated to reflect

tha entiy hac 3 fatalties of charging car operators, due to eruptions in furnace. Currently plant operation is temporarily shut down to ensura all remedial measures are undertaken for start of safa operation. The

The Acn'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Cuttack Bench passed an order an order on 15 November 2022 sanctioning the Scheme of Amalgamation of Facor Power fimited, Subsidiary Company, into the Company, under section 230 & 232 of the

Corrpenies Act, 2012,

Schetna of Arangements have been accounted for in the books of neccunt of ths Company in accordance with the Scheme' and in accordance with accounting standards.




FERRO ALLOYS CORPORATICN LIMITED.

HNetes forming part of the financial statements as at and fer the year ended 31 March 2023

{1} Relationship with Struck uff Companies

Whera the cumpany ias ary transactions with cempanias struck off under soction 248 of tho Companies Act, 2013 the Company shall disclose the foltowing details, namely:-

Siavedants

Name of struci off Company

Nature of transactions with struck off

Transaction during the year

Balance outstanding

Relationship with the
Struck off company, if

ompany 4
FACOR Rew'ty and Irfastru3iurs Limiod n scurfies - - S:l;‘s‘:di‘azybgg::z::;m
- Recavables - z
o~ Payabics. - -
Shares invested in struck off co. {impaired) 0.01 =
Xher balances - .

(fii) Corporate Seclal Respansibility (CSR)

(¥In Crores)

Where tha company covered undar section 135 o tae Companies Act, the following shall be disclosed with regard to CSR activities:-

(8) amount required to ba spent by the company curing the year,
Loss: 1/3 Excess CSR Expenses for FY 2020-21
1/3 Excoss CSR Exponses for FY 2021-22

{b) amount of expendture irzuired®

Amsunt to ba spent in CSR in FY 202223 s ¥. 2 72 Crs. (aftor taking ndjustmant of 1/3rd Excass GSR spent for FY 2020-21 & FY 2021-22). Actual CSR spent in FY 2022-

(€) Nature of CSR actvities

Partculars

Education

281

272
267

Health

Infrastricture

VIASH

[Wdman Empowermen:

i
a3
7
1
60
34

Covid Support

COthers

>
olojolo|~(ofo]3

v

Grand Total

287

(d) datalls of related party trarsactions, e g.,contriawtian to a trust controlied by the company in relation to GSR

-23 was ¥.2.87 Crs. So there is over spending of 2. 0.14 Cr.

expondiure s per relevant Accounting Standard, NA
(a) where & pravision is mads with fesjact to a 1aai'ty incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movaments
in 1o provisicn during the year shali £3 chown separately No
{iv) Following Financ:al Ratios are disclosed.-
Particuars - FY 202223 FY 202122 % Change Reason
‘@) Currant Ratio( In Timas) 091 1.06 4%
(b) Cebt-Equity Ratio (n Times) 0.32 0.44 -26% The repaymant of NCDs and higher profitability contributes towards the lower|
dabt 1o equity ratio as compared to previous year.
(c) Debt Sonvca Coverzga Refio{in Times) 1381 2090 ~34% | The profits during the current year are sufficient fo pay the finance cost.
(@ Refurn on Equry Ratio (n %) 028 026 7%
(e) Inventory tumever fatio{ 11 Timas) 782 12,52 ~38% | The lnventory turnover Ratio has improved compared to previous year due o]
average invantory are increased.
() Trade Receivabies turnovar rtio(in tmas) 057 287 ~80% | During the current year, sales are majorly made on advance basis, tharafore|
higher in both Credit sales and Average Inventory
(@) Trade payables tum.aver raticy In Times) [EZ] 331 ~48% | Due to increased In Trade payable and net credit purchase.
{h) Net caphal tumover ratiol in Times) 2867 57.96 ~145%  Duo to the batter cash flow the net working capital is positive s Iast year, thi]
indicates smooth operations during the previous year,
Gy Hat proft catio (1 %) 0.38 0.24 56% [ Strong volume with better margin contributes towards befier ratio.
() Rotur on Caoltal ompleyad/ 'n %) an 035 ~67%| ROCE tumns out to ba baftar due 10 positive returns but comes down dua to
higher capital capital employed during the year.
39 Retarn o invesimert (n %) 027 023 16%
Fermulze for computat on ¢: satios i3 as follcws
2articuars Numerator D
qu Curent Ratiof In Timas' Curent Assets Curent Liability
{b) Cebt-Enuity Rati {n Tires) Tota' Liability Fune
(c! Debt Service Caverage Retiofin Tirses) Net Operating Income/ EBITDA ‘otal Debt Service Cost
[feil Retum on Ecury Ratio (.1 %) Net Earaings Equity
e invento tyrmover ratel in Timest Turnever worage Inventory

Traze R trnover atofl times)

et Credit Sales

werage Account

) Trade pavebles tuTave; wmhed In Times)

Net Credit Purchases

Average Account Pavables.

(h) het capital funover ratinf i Times:, o Arnual Salos Working Caoital __
{2 et ereft ratic (in %) ot Profit aftor tax Rovenuo from operations,
) Raturn en Capital emolovad( in %) EBIT Capital Emploved

) Roturn on investment (in %)

| Net Profit after tax

Capital Emoloved

{v} The Company have not teen declared a Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank cr financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereot, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

(vi) The Campany does nct hav a1y Benarms Froparty and no procesdings have been initiatad or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property, under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1985 (45 of 1988) and tho rules made
thereunder

{vil) Tha quarterly returns or statemanta of cLmont assets fiied by the Compan:

{viti) In Currert year, na revatuation has been dana fer Frogerty, plant and phupment and Intangible assets

As por cur report ar aven deto

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
rtored ficcounterts

Chai
Wm‘s Ragn.Ho.30100%

i Ct)"‘

per Ajay Barfsal
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ats : 24 £pil 2023

with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts,
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v,
(DIN 093

LY Ay
o= l,\)—c,/
Karan Kumar Kejriwal
-

Chiaf Financial Officer

Place : Bhadrak
Date * 24 April 2023

s
Company Secretary
(1SS! Membership No.11105)




